
 
Note:  Unless approved, Regular Meetings of the Board of Directors will be no longer than 3 hours in length at any single session.  INTERPRETERS 
FOR THE HEARING IMPAIRED:  To request interpreter services for this meeting call 503-852-6980 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. 
 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

REGULAR SESSION AGENDA 

        LOCATION: YCSD BOARDROOM: 120 N. LARCH PL. YAMHILL OR 97148 

Or VIA ZOOM https://us06web.zoom.us/j/91341315065 

Password: sW66uH 

Monday, August 11, 2025                                                                                Regular Session:  6:00pm 
 

AGENDA 

I. Call to Order Regular Session  
 

II. Flag Salute 
 

III. Individuals, Delegations, Recognitions, and Communications 
A. YCHS – Tanner Smith & Richard Ceder – Verbal Report 
B. YCIS – Amanda Dallas & Chad Tollefson - Verbal Report 
C. YCES – Morgan Bishop – Verbal Report 

 

Public Comment – The Board welcomes you to its monthly meeting.  We ask that you complete an Intent to Speak Form by sending an email to the Board Secretary at 

brownm@ycschools.org.  The Board will receive public comments at this time but will defer issues to the appropriate administrator.  During public comment, the Board 

listens but neither discusses, nor responds to questions and concerns.  Speakers are limited to three minutes. 
 

IV. Review of Agenda (Action Item) 
 

V. Regular Session – Consent Agenda (Action Item)  
A. Approval of Board of Directors Minutes  

1. Regular Session Minutes:  07/10/2025 

2. Work Session Minutes: 07/21/2025 

B. Personnel 

C. Enrollment  

D. Surplus 
 

VI. Announcements and Reports 

A. Superintendent’s Report – Clint Raever – Verbal Report  

B. District Facilities Report – Ian Barr – Verbal Report 

C. Financials and List of Bills for July 2025– Melanie Neece (Action Item)  
 

VII. New Business 
A. Request for FFA to Travel Out of State for Nationals (Action Item) 

B. Substance Abuse Prevention Plan (Action Item) 

C. Approve 2025-2026 Board Meeting Schedule (Action Item) 

D. Resolution 2026-04 to Make Changes in Appropriations (Action Item) 

E. Adopt Policy KH – Public Gifts to the District 

F. Cell Phone Ban Discussion 
 

VIII. Board of Directors Comments 
 

IX. Executive Session per ORS 192.660(b) To consider the dismissal or disciplining of, or to hear 
complaints or charges brought against, a public officer, employee, staff member or individual 
agent who does not request an open hearing. 

 

X. Adjournment 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/91341315065


 

Yamhill Carlton School District  
Human Resources  
Board Report 
August 11, 2025 

 

New Hires  
Tristyn DeHart, YCIS InstrucƟonal Assistant ‐ Behavior 
Yolanda Damaso, YCSD InstrucƟonal Assistant ‐ EL 
Jason Wofford, YCSD Temporary Cust/Maint/Grds 
Zachary Spink, YCHS Cross Country Head Coach 
Rhonda Cutler, YCIS InstrucƟonal Assistant ‐ LRC 

Resign/Retire/Term Employees 
Karissa Cox, YCIS InstrucƟonal Assistant ‐ Behavior 
Richard Lyons, YCHS InstrucƟonal Assistant ‐ Behavior 
Rylan Larsen, YCHS Cross Country Head Coach 

Current  Employees:  Position Changes                                                                                  
Lisa Mulholland, YCIS Behavior IA to YCHS Behavior IA 

Open Positions For 2025-2026 

None 



Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

YCES 274        273       274       271       274        273       269       271            269          269          

YCIS 367        367       370       370       369        362       367       368            368          369          

YCHS 281        278       275       274       273        272       265       265            267          261          

Alliance 172        168       171       172       173        170       164       163            164          163          

Total 1,094    1,086    1,090    1,087    1,089    1,077    1,065    1,067         1,068       1,062       

23/24 Total 1,101    1,101    1,093    1,090    1,088    1,080    1,083    1,087         1,098       1,094       

22/23 Total 1,118    1,110    1,108    1,098    1,098    1,103    1,098    1,102         1,106       1,096       

21/22 Total 1,029    1,028    1,038    1,032    1,029    1,028    1,023    1,023         1,022       1,016       

20/21 Total 1,067    1,064    1,064    1,063    1,054    1,038    1,048    1,039         1,028       1,043       

19/20 Total 1,060    1,067    1,065    1,060    1,053    1,043    1,034    1,045         1,045       1,044       

Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Kindergarten 57          57         58          58          57          57          56         55               54            54            

1st Grade 72          70         70          70          72          72          70         72               71            71            

2nd Grade 75          76         77          76          76          76          76         76               76            76            

3rd Grade 70          70         69          67          69          68          67         68               68            68            

24/25 Total 274        273       274       271       274        273       269       271            269          269          

23/24 Total 284 284 282 279 280 282 285 288 290 291

22/23 Total 301 297 299 299 297 297 298 304 306 307

21/22 Total 265 269 271 264 273 274 270 268 268 266

20/21 Total 231 229 230 228 225 221 225 223 223 223

19/20 Total 362 365 366 361 363 361 358 364 367 366

Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

4th Grade 72          71         73          73          73          71          72         72               72            73            

5th Grade 91          90         87          88          87          87          89         90               90            90            

6th Grade 53          54         55          55          55          54          53         54               54            54            

7th Grade 76          75         77          76          76          72          73         73               73            73            

8th Grade 75          77         78          78          78          78          80         79               79            79            

24/25 Total 367        367       370       370       369        362       367       368            368          369          

23/24 Total 348 344 345 345 345 348 352 355 361 360

22/23 Total 332 329 330 325 322 328 322 321 325 324

21/22 Total 343 342 347 349 351 348 343 347 349 345

20/21 Total 291 287 276 276 272 273 282 291 282 282

19/20 Total 308 312 311 313 307 303 303 307 307 307

YCIS Enrollment for 2024-25 School Year

District Enrollment for 2024-25 School Year

YCES Enrollment for 2024-25 School Year

Yamhill Carlton School District Enrollment Report

June

2025

For FY 18/19 19/20, the 4th grade was counted at YCES.



Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

9th Grade 66          65         64          64          64          63          63         62               63            63            

10th Grade 71          70         70          70          71          70          67         66               66            64            

11th Grade 71          70         69          70          68          68          67         67               68            66            

12th Grade 73          73         72          70          70          71          68         70               70            68            

Transition -         -        -        -        -         -        -        -             -           -           

24/25 Total 281        278       275       274       273        272       265       265            267          261          

23/24 Total 289 292 283 283 281 271 269 268 270 270

22/23 Total 293 290 288 284 290 285 286 285 284 278

21/22 Total 284 283 285 285 278 281 281 278 276 277

20/21 Total 290 290 292 290 290 290 291 291 276 291

19/20 Total 299 300 298 295 295 290 286 287 284 284

 Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

Kindergarten 18          18         20          21          21          23          23         23               23            23            

1st Grade 15          14         14          14          15          14          14         13               13            13            

2nd Grade 22          20         20          20          20          20          20         20               20            20            

3rd Grade 23          22         22          22          21          21          20         19               19            19            

4th Grade 32          33         34          34          34          32          31         33               33            32            

5th Grade 15          15         15          15          15          15          13         12               12            12            

6th Grade 18          17         18          18          18          17          17         17               17            17            

7th Grade 16          17         16          16          16          15          15         15               16            16            

8th Grade 10          8           8            8            9            10          8           8                 8               8               

9th Grade 2            2           2            2            2            2            2           2                 2               2               

10th Grade -         -        -        -        -         -        -        -             -           -           

11th Grade -         1           1            1            1            -        -        -             -           -           

12th Grade 1            1           1            1            1            1            1           1                 1               1               

24/25 Total 172        168       171       172       173        170       164       163            164          163          

23/24 Total 180 181 183 183 182 179 177 176 177 173

22/23 Total 192 194 191 190 189 193 192 192 191 187

21/22 Total 137 134 135 134 127 125 129 130 129 128

20/21 Total 255 258 266 269 267 254 250 234 247 247

19/20 Total 91 91 91 92 89 90 88 88 88 88

YCHS Enrollment for 2024-25 School Year

Alliance Academy Enrollment 2024-25

For FY 18/19 19/20, the 4th grade was counted at YCES.



 
 

SURPLUS 
AUGUST 2025 

 
 

YCHS: (Various Values) 
12 Orange chairs (Science Dome) 
2 metal desks 
One wood desk 
1 six foot wood table 
1 6 foot metal table 
2 carts 
1 2 drawer file cabinet  
2 large metal bookshelves 
1 wooden 6 foot bookshelf  
4  four drawer file cabinets 
3 office chairs 
1 Blue student chair  
1 3 foot x 18" table 

 
 
DISTRICT SHEET MUSIC 
Concert band (Value Range $63,850 to $153,240) 
Orchestra (Value Range $5,010 to $14,195) 
Jazz Band (Value Range $7,650 to $14,450)  
Pep band (Value Range $150 to $450) 
Small ensemble/Solo (Value Range $180 to $840)  
 
DISTRICT: 
Clark Forklift (Approximate Value $500) 

 
  
 

YCIS SCIENCE ITEMS: (Various Values) 
24 1995 PH Life Science books 
24 1995 PH Earth Science books 
25 1993 PH Motion, forces, energy 
25 1993 PH Matter: building blocks of 
the universe 
8 1993 PH TE sample books, various 
subjects 
30 Varied preserved specimens 
2 boxes craft supplies: stamps, masks 
beads 
1 case 2006 Potential Teem Maze 
case 
1 case genetics worksheets/lab 
material 
1 Chrystal growing kit 
1 case human body systems 
worksheets 
1 case virusus/snake model 
20 Science posters 
2 boxes summer ag institute supplies 
1 box marble run 
Binder and small box science and our 
food supply materials 
1 tub hydroponics set up – tubes and 
sprinklers 
1 box unknown lab supplies 
1 box large glue gun glue sticks 
7 containers preserved dissection 
creatures 
1 box various fiction books 
50 old teaching books 
5 boxes animal tank supplies / 2 tanks 
2 turning point click technology sets 
Tub wooden carts and wheels 
1 box human body models various 
condition parts 
2 animal pelts 
1 box electronic cables and speakers 
 



































Yamhill Carlton School District 

Substance Use Prevention and Intervention Plan  
 

 

 

Date: May 19, 2025 

 

  



2 

Table of Contents 

Executive Summary        3 

Overview         4 

Mission/Vision Statements      5 

District Policies       6 

Substance Use Prevention & Intervention Action Plan  7 

District Substance Abuse Misuse Referral Process   23 

Emergency Action Plan: Substance Abuse Incident in School 24 

Yamhill County Referral for Youth Services    27 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  



3 

Executive Summary 

 

The Yamhill Carlton School District (YCSD) is committed to supporting students in leading 
healthy, drug-free lives by fostering a safe and supportive environment rooted in strong 
partnerships with families, staff, and the broader community. The district’s prevention strategy 
focuses on education, early intervention, and promoting responsible decision-making through 
health instruction, counseling services, and social-emotional learning. 

Findings from the 2024 Oregon Student Health Survey highlight growing concerns: as students 
age, substance use increases significantly. For example, alcohol use rises from 15.8% in 6th 
grade to 33.3% in 11th grade, marijuana use from 4.8% to 39.5%, and tobacco/vaping from 1.6% 
to 38.1%. While misuse of prescription opioids remains low, a high number of younger students 
report uncertainty about substance use, indicating a need for clearer, more accessible education. 

YCSD already has several strengths in place: a comprehensive K–12 health curriculum (with an 
updated version in progress), access to school counseling, support from a part-time Drug & 
Alcohol Therapist, regular visits from a School Resource Officer, and the use of programs like 
Wayfinder and Character Strong to build students’ resilience and decision-making skills. Policies 
and communication efforts further reinforce prevention goals. 

However, challenges remain. Limited availability of key support personnel, inconsistent staff 
confidence in addressing substance use concerns, unclear reporting procedures, and barriers to 
family engagement hinder the effectiveness of current efforts. Additionally, students are not yet 
actively involved in leading prevention work, and staffing limitations restrict the expansion of 
programming. 

Despite these challenges, YCSD sees numerous opportunities to strengthen its prevention plan. 
The updated health curriculum offers a timely avenue to integrate enhanced prevention content. 
Expanded involvement from community partners, improved staff training, increased student 
leadership, and new outreach tools—such as a planned student resource area—can help close 
existing gaps. 

The district also recognizes potential threats, including budget constraints, varying community 
attitudes toward substance use, and inconsistent family engagement, which may dilute the impact 
of prevention messaging. 

In response, YCSD’s prevention plan focuses on expanding student and family awareness, 
strengthening education and intervention strategies, equipping staff with necessary training, and 
enhancing communication with all stakeholders. Through these efforts, the district aims to build 
a robust, proactive system that empowers students to make healthy, informed choices and thrive 
both in school and beyond. 

 
 
  



4 

Overview 

 

The Yamhill Carlton School District (YCSD) Substance Use Prevention and Intervention Plan 
presents a comprehensive, collaborative framework aimed at preventing and addressing 
substance use among students. Grounded in a prevention-first philosophy, the plan emphasizes 
education, early identification, and connection to support services, while maintaining clear 
policies and consequences in alignment with Oregon Administrative Rules. 

Funded through a blend of general funds, grants, electronic inhalation device settlement funds, 
and community partnerships, the plan supports district-wide implementation and sustainability. 
Students may be referred to intervention services through multiple channels—including self, 
parent, staff, MTSS identification, or disciplinary action—with school staff and substance abuse 
counselors coordinating to provide appropriate support. Referral procedures and policy 
implementation are reviewed annually to ensure effectiveness and alignment with legal and best 
practice standards. 

YCSD’s K–12 health education curriculum aligns with State Board-adopted standards and 
includes instruction on the impacts of substance use, legal implications, and prevention 
strategies, supported by input from school resource officers and local partners like Yamhill 
County Mental Health. Supplementary programs such as Wayfinder and Character Strong 
enhance instruction by promoting resilience, decision-making, and positive student behavior. 

The plan reinforces that prevention is a shared responsibility among schools, families, and the 
broader community. It outlines clear consequences for substance use or possession while 
ensuring students also have access to intervention and support. Staff training is conducted 
annually to equip personnel with the knowledge to identify signs of substance use and respond 
effectively. 

Recognizing the importance of clear and consistent communication, the district is committed to 
improving how prevention strategies and available resources are shared with students, families, 
and the community. The plan includes steps to enhance stakeholder engagement and ensure 
transparency, including School Board review and public access to policies online. Input from 
parents, educators, students, and local agencies will be actively sought to guide the plan’s 
ongoing development and implementation. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



5 

Mission Statement 

 
At Yamhill Carlton School District, our mission is to prevent opioid misuse by helping students 
build healthy, strong lives. With strong support from our school counselors, substance abuse 
counselor, and the wider community, we focus on teaching social-emotional skills, healthy 
habits, and smart decision-making through our adopted health and substance abuse curriculum. 
We are committed to improving communication with parents and the community, and to 
increasing training opportunities for staff, parents, and students. Together, we prepare and 
empower students to make positive choices and stay drug-free. 

Vision Statement 

 
Yamhill Carlton School District envisions a community where students are supported by strong 
school and community resources to live healthy, drug-free lives. By working together with 
families, staff, and local partners, we aim to create a safe environment that teaches prevention, 
encourages positive choices, and helps every student succeed. 
 
 
  



6 

District Policies and Documents 

SCHOOL BOARD POLICIES 

SUBSTANCE/DRUG USE  

 HTTPS://POLICY.OSBA.ORG/YCSD/J/JFCI%20G1.PDF 

HTTPS://POLICY.OSBA.ORG/YCSD/J/JFCI%20R%20D1.PDF 

DRUG, ALCOHOL AND TOBACCO PREVENTION, HEALTH EDUCATION 

 HTTPS://POLICY.OSBA.ORG/YCSD/I/IGAEB%20G1.PDF 

USE OF TOBACCO PRODUCTS, ALCOHOL, DRUGS OR INHALANT 

 HTTPS://POLICY.OSBA.ORG/YCSD/J/JFCG_JFCH_JFCI%20G1.PDF 

 

 

 

https://policy.osba.org/YCSD/J/JFCG_JFCH_JFCI%20G1.PDF


7 

Substance Use Prevention & Intervention Action Plan 

 

Goal: K-12 Instruction  

Adopt and implement a comprehensive K-12 substance abuse prevention curriculum. 

Objective #1: All students will receive age appropriate lessons in substance use and prevention education. 
Objective #2: Students will learn about impacts of substance abuse and misuse. 
Objective #3: Students will learn about prevention and intervention resources. 

Activities/Approaches Timeframe 
(Activity Timeframe) 

Person(s) 
Responsible  

 

Outcomes 
Short Term Anticipated Outcomes  Long Term Anticipated Outcomes  

Adopt new K-12 health curriculum. June 2025 School Board   All teachers are trained and confident 
in delivering the new health curriculum. 

  Updated lesson plans reflect the new 
curriculum standards. 

  Initial feedback from staff and 
students will show improved 
understanding of key health topics. 

 

  Students demonstrate sustained 
improvement in health knowledge, 
decision-making skills, and healthy 
behaviors as a result of the new 
curriculum. 

  Teachers continue to receive 
ongoing professional development to 
ensure effective delivery and 
alignment with best practices. 

  A measurable positive impact is 
observed in student well-being, 
including increased physical activity, 
improved nutrition habits, and 
enhanced mental health awareness 
over multiple academic years. 

Wayfinder substance misuse 
module 

2025-26 School Year YCIS Admin   Teachers are trained to deliver the 
module confidently and effectively. 

  The module is introduced in 
classrooms within the next academic 
year. 

  Students begin to engage in 
discussions and activities that build 

  Students develop an understanding 
of the risks and consequences 
associated with substance misuse, 
leading to healthier decision-making 
over time. 

  The module becomes a consistent 
part of the school’s health education 



8 

awareness of the risks of substance 
misuse. 

 

program, supporting a prevention-
focused school culture. 

  A measurable reduction in 
substance misuse-related incidents 
and risk behaviors among students is 
observed over several academic 
years, supported by ongoing 
evaluation and community 
engagement. 

Health class units 2025-26 School Year Teachers   The new units are implemented in 
health classes during the next school 
year. 

  Students actively participate in 
lessons that promote awareness of 
substance abuse risks and prevention 
strategies. 

  Early assessments and feedback 
show improved student understanding 
and engagement with the topic. 

 

  Students demonstrate informed 
decision-making and a strong 
understanding of the risks associated 
with substance abuse. 

  The substance abuse units become 
a core component of the health 
curriculum, reinforced across grade 
levels for continued relevance and 
impact. 

  Over time, the school community 
sees a measurable decline in 
substance-related incidents and an 
increase in healthy coping strategies 
and behaviors among students. 

Advisory Lessons 2025-26 School Year Teachers   Advisory teachers receive training 
and materials to effectively deliver the 
new substance abuse prevention lessons. 

  The lessons are introduced and 
implemented in advisory sessions 
during the next school year. 

  Students begin to engage in open 
conversations about substance use, risk 
factors, and healthy decision-making. 

  Initial feedback indicates increased 
student awareness and comfort 
discussing substance-related topics in a 
supportive setting. 

  Students develop lasting 
knowledge and resilience to make 
healthy, informed choices about 
substance use through regular, age-
appropriate advisory lessons. 

  Substance abuse prevention 
becomes an integrated part of the 
school culture, reinforced through 
ongoing advisory discussions. 

  Advisory teachers are confident 
and well-prepared to lead meaningful 
conversations and provide support 
using up-to-date resources and 
training. 



9 

   Over time, the school sees a 
reduction in substance-related issues 
and an increase in student-reported 
confidence to resist peer pressure and 
seek help when needed. 

Annual Opioid Prevention Lessons 2025-26 School year Admin and 
Teachers 

 Teachers will deliver the annual 
opioid prevention lessons in either 
health classes or advisory lessons. 

  Students retain and apply the 
knowledge gained from these 
presentations to make healthier 
choices throughout their school years. 

Prevention Speaker  2025-26 School Year School Admin   A qualified substance abuse 
prevention speaker is scheduled and 
presents to students during the next 
school year. 

  Students are exposed to real-life 
experiences and evidence-based 
information about the risks of substance 
use. 

  The presentation sparks meaningful 
conversations among students and staff 
about healthy choices and peer 
influence. 

  Immediate feedback shows increased 
student awareness and understanding of 
substance abuse prevention messages. 

  Students retain and apply the 
knowledge gained from these 
presentations to make healthier 
choices throughout their school years. 

  The school community develops a 
stronger culture of awareness, 
support, and open dialogue around 
substance abuse prevention. 

  Over time, there is a measurable 
decrease in substance misuse 
incidents and increased student 
engagement in prevention programs 
and resources. 

 

Law enforcement presentation 
(SRO) 

2025-26 School Year School 
admin/SRO 

  A law enforcement officer presents 
to students about substance abuse, legal 
consequences, and prevention during the 
next school year. 

  Students gain firsthand knowledge of 
the risks and laws related to substance 
use. 

  The presentation encourages student 
questions and discussions about making 
safe, legal choices. 

  Initial feedback shows increased 
student awareness and understanding of 

  Law enforcement presentations 
become a trusted part of the school’s 
substance abuse education, providing 
students with accurate information 
and real-world perspectives. 

  Students develop a clearer 
understanding of the legal 
consequences and health risks related 
to substance abuse, influencing their 
decision-making positively. 

  Stronger partnerships between the 
school and local law enforcement 



10 

substance abuse issues and legal 
impacts. 

 

foster ongoing dialogue and support 
for prevention efforts. 

  Over time, the school experiences 
a reduction in substance-related 
incidents and an increase in student 
awareness about safe, lawful 
behaviors. 

  



11 

 

Goal: Policies, Rules and Procedures 

YCSD will ensure compliance with all state and federal policies and laws regarding substance abuse, prevention, and education. 

Objective #1: YCSD will review all district policies to ensure they are current and represent best practice in substance abuse prevention and 
intervention. 
Objective #2: Each YCSD school will review handbooks and practices to ensure alignment with YCSD polices regarding substance abuse prevention 
and intervention. 
Objective #3: Establish tiered interventions when violations of the districts substance abuse and prevention policies and practices occur. 

Activities/Approaches Timeframe 
(Activity 

Timeframe) 

Person(s) Responsible  
 

Outcomes 
Short Term Anticipated Outcomes  Long Term Anticipated Outcomes 

Review School Handbooks August 2025 School Admin   The school handbook is reviewed and 
updated to clearly outline substance abuse 
policies, consequences, and available 
support resources. 

  Staff and administration are informed 
about any changes or clarifications in the 
handbook related to substance abuse. 

  Students and families receive 
communication about the updated handbook 
and understand the school’s expectations 
and support options. 

  Initial feedback shows increased 
awareness and clarity among students and 
staff about substance abuse rules and 
resources. 

  The updated school 
handbook consistently 
reinforces clear, fair, and 
supportive substance abuse 
policies that promote a safe 
and healthy school 
environment. 

  Students, staff, and 
families regularly reference 
and understand the 
handbook, leading to greater 
compliance and awareness of 
expectations. 

  Ongoing reviews ensure 
the handbook stays current 
with best practices and legal 
requirements related to 
substance abuse. 

  Over time, the school 
experiences fewer substance-
related incidents and stronger 
community trust in the 
school’s commitment to 
prevention and support. 



12 

 
Review district policies August 2025 District Admin   District policies on substance abuse are 

reviewed and updated to ensure clarity, 
relevance, and alignment with current laws 
and best practices. 

  Key staff and administrators are 
informed about any changes or updates to 
the policies. 

  Schools receive guidance on 
implementing the updated policies 
effectively. 

 

  District policies on 
substance abuse are regularly 
reviewed and updated to 
reflect current best practices, 
legal standards, and 
prevention strategies. 

  Schools across the district 
consistently implement clear, 
supportive, and effective 
substance abuse policies. 

  Staff, students, and 
families are well-informed 
about district-wide 
expectations, consequences, 
and available resources 
related to substance abuse. 

  Over time, the district 
sees a decrease in substance-
related incidents and an 
increase in coordinated 
prevention efforts and 
support services across 
schools. 

Review handbooks and policies 
with students 

September 2025 School Admin   Students participate in sessions where 
key substance abuse policies from the 
handbook and district are clearly explained 
and discussed. 

  Students gain a better understanding of 
school expectations, consequences, and 
available support related to substance abuse. 

  Open dialogue encourages students to 
ask questions and share concerns, fostering 
a supportive environment. 

  Initial feedback shows increased student 
awareness and clarity about substance abuse 
rules and resources. 

  Regular reviews of 
substance abuse policies with 
students become a standard 
part of school practice, 
reinforcing understanding 
and accountability over time. 

  Students develop a strong 
sense of responsibility and 
awareness regarding 
substance abuse expectations 
and consequences. 

  Ongoing conversations 
help build a supportive 
school culture where 
students feel comfortable 



13 

seeking help and making 
healthy choices. 

  Over time, there is a 
measurable reduction in 
substance-related incidents 
and increased use of 
available support resources 
among students. 

Review handbooks and policies 
with staff 

September 2025 School Admin   Staff participate in sessions to review 
and clarify substance abuse policies outlined 
in the handbook and district guidelines. 

  Staff gain a clear understanding of their 
roles and responsibilities in enforcing 
policies and supporting students. 

  Immediate questions and concerns from 
staff are addressed to ensure consistent 
application of policies. 

  Initial feedback indicates increased staff 
confidence and readiness to handle 
substance abuse issues effectively. 

  Regular reviews of 
substance abuse policies with 
staff become a routine 
practice, ensuring consistent 
understanding and 
enforcement across the 
school. 

  Staff members are 
confident and prepared to 
apply policies fairly and 
supportively, fostering a safe 
and healthy school 
environment. 

  Ongoing discussions help 
build a unified approach to 
prevention, intervention, and 
student support related to 
substance abuse. 

  Over time, improved staff 
awareness and collaboration 
contribute to a reduction in 
substance-related incidents 
and enhanced student well-
being. 

Review Law enforcement response 
when violations occur 

September 2025 SRO and District 
admin 

  Staff and administrators review and 
clarify procedures for involving law 
enforcement in substance abuse violations. 

  A clear, well-understood 
protocol for law enforcement 
involvement in substance 
abuse violations is 
consistently applied across 
the school. 



14 

  Clear guidelines are established on when 
and how to engage law enforcement in a 
consistent and appropriate manner. 

  Staff understand their roles and 
responsibilities in coordinating with law 
enforcement during incidents. 

  Initial feedback shows increased staff 
confidence in managing substance abuse 
violations and collaborating with law 
enforcement effectively. 

  Strong collaboration and 
communication between 
school staff and law 
enforcement foster timely, 
appropriate responses that 
prioritize student safety and 
support. 

  Staff remain confident 
and prepared to handle 
incidents involving law 
enforcement, ensuring 
consistent enforcement of 
policies. 

  Over time, this 
coordinated approach 
contributes to a safer school 
environment and supports 
prevention efforts by 
addressing violations 
effectively and fairly. 

  



15 

 

Goal: Communication  

Establish regular and ongoing communication regarding substance abuse prevention and intervention within our schools and greater community. 

Objective #1: Communicate with parents and the greater community the professional development YCSD staff receive in substance abuse prevention 
and intervention. 
Objective #2: Report semi-annually, to the governing board, data regarding substance abuse incidents and prevention activities. 
Objective #3: Provide regularly updates resources and information to students and staff regarding substance abuse prevention and intervention. 

Activities/Approaches Timeframe 
(Activity 

Timeframe) 

Person(s) Responsible  
 

Outcomes 
Short Term Anticipated Outcomes  Long Term Anticipated 

Outcomes 

Parentsquare Quarterly Schools/District   Substance abuse prevention messages and 
resources are shared with families through 
ParentSquare during the next school year. 

  Parents and guardians receive timely, clear 
information about risks, prevention strategies, 
and available support. 

  The communication encourages family 
engagement and conversations around 
substance abuse prevention at home. 

  Early feedback shows increased parent 
awareness and positive responses to the 
information shared via ParentSquare. 

  Families remain well-
informed and actively 
engaged in prevention 
efforts, fostering stronger 
home-school partnerships. 

  Consistent 
communication supports a 
culture of open dialogue 
about substance abuse, 
helping students make 
healthier choices. 

  Over time, increased 
family involvement 
contributes to a decrease in 
substance misuse incidents 
and greater utilization of 
support services within the 
community. 

 
District Wide Newsletter Quarterly Superintendent   Readers receive clear, relevant information 

about substance abuse risks, prevention 
strategies, and available support resources. 

  The newsletter sparks initial interest and 
encourages conversations about substance 

 District-wide 
newsletters provide up-to-
date, evidence-based 
information on substance 
abuse prevention to 



16 

abuse prevention within the school 
community. 

  Early feedback indicates increased 
awareness and positive reception of the 
newsletter content. 

 

students, families, and 
staff. 

  The newsletters foster 
ongoing awareness and 
open conversations about 
substance abuse risks and 
healthy choices across the 
school community. 

  Increased engagement 
with prevention resources 
and programs is supported 
through newsletter content 
and calls to action. 

  Over time, the district 
experiences stronger 
community support for 
prevention efforts and a 
measurable reduction in 
substance-related 
incidents. 

Semi Annual Board Report Semester Building Admin   The first semi-annual report on substance 
abuse prevention efforts is prepared and 
presented to the school board. 

  The report provides clear updates on 
current programs, activities, and any 
immediate challenges or needs. 

  Board members gain a better 
understanding of the district’s prevention 
initiatives and areas for improvement. 

  Initial feedback from the board helps guide 
short-term planning and resource allocation 
for substance abuse prevention. 

 

  Semi-annual reports 
keep the school board 
well-informed about 
substance abuse 
prevention efforts, 
progress, and challenges 
across the district. 

  The reports support 
data-driven decision-
making and allocation of 
resources to strengthen 
prevention programs. 

  Ongoing transparency 
fosters accountability and 
encourages continued 
investment in student 
health and safety 
initiatives. 



17 

  Over time, regular 
reporting contributes to 
improved prevention 
outcomes and a safer, 
healthier school 
environment district-wide. 

 
Staff professional development 
around Prevention and Incidents 

Quarterly Building Admin   Staff receive training that covers available 
substance abuse prevention resources as well 
as recent data on the number and types of 
incidents. 

  The professional development helps staff 
understand how to use prevention tools 
effectively in response to identified incident 
trends. 

  Staff feel better equipped to recognize, 
prevent, and address substance abuse issues 
based on real data. 

  Initial feedback shows increased staff 
confidence and awareness of both resources 
and incident patterns. 

  Ongoing professional 
development ensures staff 
stay informed about the 
latest prevention resources 
and trends in substance 
abuse incidents. 

  A culture of proactive 
prevention and informed 
intervention is established, 
improving overall student 
safety and well-being.  
Over time, enhanced staff 
capacity contributes to a 
measurable reduction in 
substance abuse incidents 
and more effective support 
for at-risk students. 

 
Digital Billboard Year long Building Admin   A TV display is set up in a central school 

location to share substance abuse prevention 
resources and data. 

  Students and staff begin to notice and 
engage with the information presented. 

  The display sparks initial awareness and 
conversations about substance abuse 
prevention. 

  Early feedback indicates that the TV is an 
effective tool for increasing visibility of 
important prevention messages. 

  The TV display 
becomes a regular and 
engaging way to share up-
to-date substance abuse 
prevention resources and 
incident data with students 
and staff. 

  Increased visibility of 
prevention information 
raises awareness and 
encourages proactive 
discussions around 
substance abuse. 



18 

   Staff and students use 
the displayed data to stay 
informed about trends and 
available support, 
promoting a culture of 
prevention. 

  Over time, this 
consistent communication 
contributes to greater 
community engagement 
and a reduction in 
substance-related 
incidents. 

 

  



19 

 

Goal: Staff Training  

All YCSD staff will be provided training in substance abuse prevention and intervention including specified training that is age appropriate for their assignment. 

Objective #1: All YCSD staff will receive training in substance abuse recognition. 
Objective #2: All YCSD staff will receive training in available prevention and intervention resources. 
Objective #3: YCSD leadership will regularly meet with substance use prevention counselor to monitor trends and the effectiveness of the programs. 

Activities/Approaches Timeframe 
(Activity 

Timeframe) 

Person(s) Responsible  
 

Outcomes 
Short Term Anticipated Outcomes  Long Term Anticipated Outcomes 

Superintendent Sharing Plan 
with Staff 

September 2025 Superintendent   The superintendent presents the 
substance abuse prevention plan to all 
staff, clearly outlining goals, strategies, 
and expectations. 

  Staff gain a better understanding of 
their roles in implementing the plan and 
supporting prevention efforts. 

  The presentation encourages staff 
questions and feedback, fostering 
engagement and collaboration. 

  Initial responses show increased staff 
awareness and commitment to the 
prevention plan. 

 

  Regular communication from the 
superintendent reinforces staff 
understanding and commitment to the 
substance abuse prevention plan over 
time. 

  Staff consistently implement 
prevention strategies aligned with the 
plan, fostering a unified approach 
across the district. 

  Ongoing dialogue between 
leadership and staff supports continuous 
improvement and responsiveness to 
emerging needs. 

  Over time, this leadership 
engagement contributes to a stronger 
prevention culture and measurable 
reductions in substance-related 
incidents. 

Staff PD Recognition and 
Intervention 

October 
2025/February 

2026 

Building 
Admin/SRO/Substance 

Abuse Counselor 

  Staff receive training to identify signs 
of substance abuse and learn about 
available support resources. 

  Staff demonstrate increased 
awareness of how to recognize substance 
abuse indicators in students. 

  Staff develop a strong ability to 
recognize signs of substance abuse 
early and respond appropriately. 

  Staff are well-informed about the 
full range of support resources available 
for students and families. 



20 

  Staff know where and how to refer 
students to appropriate prevention and 
support services. 

  Initial feedback shows improved staff 
confidence in addressing substance 
abuse concerns. 

 

  A supportive environment is fostered 
where staff actively connect students to 
prevention and intervention services. 

  Over time, enhanced staff awareness 
and responsiveness contribute to 
reduced substance abuse incidents and 
improved student well-being. 

 
Check-ins with Substance 

Abuse Counselor 
Monthly Building Admin/District 

Admin, SRO, SAC 
Administrators hold regular check-ins 
with the substance abuse counselor to 
review current cases, trends, and 
resource needs. 

  Improved communication between 
administration and counseling staff 
supports timely decision-making and 
intervention. 

  Admins gain a clearer understanding 
of substance abuse issues affecting the 
school community. 

  Initial feedback indicates stronger 
collaboration and more effective 
planning for prevention and response 
efforts. 

 

  Regular admin check-ins with the 
substance abuse counselor become a 
sustained practice, ensuring ongoing 
monitoring and support. 

  Strong collaboration between 
administration and counseling staff 
leads to proactive, data-informed 
strategies for prevention and 
intervention. 

  Administrators are well-equipped to 
allocate resources and support policies 
that address substance abuse 
effectively. 

  Over time, this coordinated approach 
contributes to a safer school 
environment and improved student 
outcomes related to substance abuse 
prevention and support. 

 
Substance Misuse Emergency Action 

Plan 
Annually and as 

needed. 
Building Admin, District 

Admin, Nurse,  
 Develop and disseminate an 

Substance Misuse Emergency Action 
Plan 

 Staff will know how to respond in the 
event of a substance misuse event. 

 

  



21 

 

Goal: School Board Approval  

The YCSD school board will play an active role in substance abuse prevention and intervention. 

Objective #1: The YCSD school board will adopt policies that are current and represent best practices in substance abuse prevention and intervention. 
Objective #2: The YCSD school board will receive semiannual reports on substance abuse prevention and intervention within the district and county. 
Objective #3: The YCSD school board will stay informed on training and curriculum utilized in the district. 

Activities/Approaches Timeframe 
(Activity 

Timeframe) 

Person(s) Responsible Outcomes 
Short Term Anticipated Outcomes  Long Term Anticipated Outcomes 

Review Policies Using current and 
best practices, 
aligned with 
current law 

Ongoing   The school board conducts a 
review of current district substance 
abuse policies. 

  Board members help identify any 
gaps or needed updates to align 
policies with best practices and legal 
standards. 

  Recommendations for policy 
revisions are developed. 

  Initial feedback reflects increased 
board awareness and commitment to 
strengthening substance abuse 
policies. 

 

  The school board reviews and 
updates district substance abuse policies 
to ensure they remain current, clear, and 
effective. 

  Updated policies reflect best 
practices and legal requirements, 
supporting consistent implementation 
across all schools. 

  The board’s oversight promotes 
accountability and prioritizes student 
health and safety district-wide. 

  Over time, these efforts contribute to 
stronger prevention programs and a 
measurable reduction in substance abuse 
incidents throughout the district. 

Statistical Board Reports Informational, 
Trends, Ability to 
Intervene, Success 

of Interventions 

Ongoing   Recent data on substance abuse 
incidents and prevention efforts is 
collected and compiled for 
presentation. 

  The school board receives a clear, 
comprehensive report highlighting 
trends, challenges, and successes. 

  Board members gain a better 
understanding of the current 

 Presentation of substance abuse data 
to the school board becomes standard 
practice, supporting ongoing 
transparency and informed decision-
making. 

  The board uses data insights to 
continuously refine policies, programs, 
and resource allocation to address 
emerging trends and needs. 



22 

substance abuse landscape within the 
district. 

  Initial discussions help guide 
decisions on resource allocation and 
policy adjustments related to 
substance abuse prevention. 

 

  Enhanced data-driven oversight leads 
to more effective prevention strategies 
and stronger accountability across the 
district. 

  Over time, these efforts contribute to 
measurable reductions in substance 
abuse incidents and improved student 
health outcomes district-wide. 

Training Updates for Board Staff Training 
Opportunities will 

be shared with 
School Board 

Ongoing   The board receives an initial 
update on recent staff training 
sessions focused on substance abuse 
prevention. 

  Information is provided on 
training content, staff participation 
rates, and immediate feedback. 

  Board members gain a clearer 
understanding of current professional 
development efforts. 

  Early input from the board helps 
shape future training plans and 
resource needs. 

 

  The school board receives updates on 
the progress and impact of staff training 
programs related to substance abuse 
prevention. 

  Board members understand the 
effectiveness of training efforts and 
support ongoing professional 
development initiatives. 

  Over time, improved staff training 
contributes to more consistent 
implementation of prevention strategies 
and a reduction in substance abuse 
incidents across the district. 

 



23 

Substance Misuse Referral Process 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Start 

Parent/Guardia
n Referral 

Self 
Referral 

School Staff 
Referral 

Disciplinary  
Referral 

Initial Concern Reported to School Counselor 
   

Meet with Student to Assess Concern 
Counselor or trained staff member meets privately 

 

 
Monitor Student. 

Offer General 
Support. Document 

   

Determine if Referral to Substance Abuse 
Counselor is Warranted 

Staff completes Yamhill County Referral for 
Youth Services Form   

C di t  ith S b t  Ab  

Follow-Up and Support 
Monitor progress and well being. Maintain 

communication with substance abuse counselor as 



24 

Emergency Action Plan: Substance Abuse Incident in School  

Purpose: 
To provide a clear and structured response to incidents involving substance abuse, ensuring the safety and health of all students and 
staff, and complying with state laws and school district policies. 

I. Initial Discovery of Incident 

Any staff member who witnesses or suspects substance abuse should: 

1. Ensure Immediate Safety: 
○ Do not leave the student alone. 
○ Remove other students from the immediate area if necessary. 
○ Avoid confrontation; remain calm and supportive. 

 
2. Notify School Administration Immediately: 

 
○ Contact the Principal, Assistant Principal, or Designee. 
○ Provide a clear account of what was observed (behavior, paraphernalia, etc.). 

 

II. Medical Emergency Response (Suspected Overdose) 

If the student is unresponsive, having difficulty breathing, or exhibiting other signs of overdose: 

1. Call 911 Immediately (Activate EMS). 
 

○ Provide dispatcher with: 
■ School address and exact location of the student. 
■ Description of the student’s condition. 
■ Substances suspected (if known). 

 
2. Notify the School Nurse (RN) or Medical Responder On-Site. 

 
3. Administer Naloxone (Narcan), if Available and Trained: 

○ Follow school policy and training procedures. 
○ Document time, dose, and response to naloxone. 

 
4. Provide Basic Life Support (BLS) as Needed: 



25 

○ If not breathing, begin CPR. 
○ Use an AED if indicated and available. 

 
5. Stay with the Student Until EMS Arrives. 

○ Monitor breathing and responsiveness. 
○ Do not attempt to restrain unless the student poses danger to self or others. 

 

III. Post-Emergency Medical Procedures 

Once EMS has arrived: 

1. Provide All Relevant Information: 
○ Observations. 
○ Actions taken (naloxone, CPR). 
○ Student’s known medical history if available. 

 
2. Escort EMS to and from the building. 

 
3. Notify Parent/Guardian: 

○ As soon as possible, school administration or designee will contact the student’s emergency contacts. 
○ Provide clear, factual information. 

 
4. Secure and Preserve Any Evidence: 

○ Substance containers, paraphernalia. 
○ Turn over to law enforcement as required. 

 

IV. Reporting and Documentation 

1. Complete Incident Report: 
○ All staff involved must submit a detailed written report. 
○ Include timelines, actions taken, and who was notified. 

 
2. Report to Appropriate Authorities: 

○ School resource officer (SRO). 
○ Local law enforcement (as required by state law). 
○ Child protective services (if applicable). 

 



26 

3. Log Naloxone Use (if administered): 
○ Record in school medical log per district and health department protocol. 

 

V. Student Support and Follow-Up 

1. Initiate Support Services: 
 

○ Refer to school counselor or substance abuse specialist. 
○ Develop a student re-entry plan if applicable. 
○ Schedule a parent/guardian meeting. 

 
2. Consider Disciplinary Action Per School Policy: 

○ Follow district guidelines for drug-related violations. 
○ Balance accountability with access to support services. 

 
3. Monitor Student: 

○ Ongoing check-ins with nurse, counselor, and administration. 
○ Safety planning and possible behavioral contract. 

 

VII. Review and Update of EAP 

● Conduct a Post-Incident Review with school safety team and administration. 
● Update EAP Annually or after any significant incident. 
● Coordinate with Local Health and Safety Agencies for compliance 



27 Yamhill County Referral for Youth Services 



Meeting Date Type of Meeting Time Student Spotlight 

07/10/2025 Regular Session 6:00pm None 

08/11/2025 Regular Session 6:00pm None 

08/19/2025 Retreat 8:00am -12pm None 

08/26/2025 Work Session 6:00pm None 

09/09/2025 Regular Session 6:00pm None 

09/23/2025 Work Session 6:00pm None 

10/07/2025 Regular Session 6:00pm YCIS 

10/21/2025 Work Session 6:00pm None 

11/11/2025 Regular Session 6:00pm YCHS 

Thanksgiving Break 

12/09/2025 Regular Session 6:00pm YCES 

Winter Break 

01/06/2026 Regular Session 6:00pm YCIS 

01/20/2026 Work Session 6:00pm None 

02/10/2026 Regular Session 6:00pm YCHS 

02/24/2026 Work Session 6:00pm None 

03/10/2026 Regular Session 6:00pm YCES 

Spring Break 

04/07/2026 Regular Session 6:00pm YCIS 

04/21/2026 Work Session 6:00pm None 

05/12/2026 Regular Session 6:00pm YCHS 

05/26/2026 Work Session 6:00pm None 

06/16/2026 Regular Session 6:00pm YCES 

06/23/2026 Work Session 6:00pm None 



RESOLUTION 2026-04

YAMHILL CARLTON SCHOOL DISTRICT
RESOLUTION TO MAKE CHANGES IN APPROPRIATIONS

DEBT SERVICES FUND
2025-2026 BUDGET

Appropriation Details

Debt Services Fund 302 – The PERS Reserved fund was adopted under function 5100 object 
0810 and should be function 6000.   

BE IT RESOLVED, that for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2025, the budget shown below, with 
the change in budget appropriations, in order to provide proper budget authority as described 
above, are hereby appropriated as indicated within the funds listed:

DEBT SERVICES PERS RESERVE FUND 302

Expenditure Function Adopted Budget
Budget 

Adjustment
Adjusted Budget

Planned Reserve (5100) 880,635 -880635 0
Contingencies (6000) 0 880,635 880,635
Total $   880,635 0.00 $  880,635

ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Yamhill Carlton School District this 12th day of August 2025.

___________________________________________ _______________________________________
Susan FitzGerald, Board Chair Clint Raever, Superintendent



Code:  KH 

Adopted:  4/14/08 

Revised: 8/11/25 

 

 

 

Public Gifts to the District 

 

Gifts which may serve to enhance and extend the work of the schools may be received by the district. It 

will be the district's general policy to direct those who desire to make contributions to consider equipment 

or services that are not likely to be acquired from public fund expenditures. 

 

1. Tangible property contributed to the schools becomes the property of the district and is subject to the 

same controls and regulations that govern the use of other district-owned property. 

 

2. Contributions of property or services that may involve major costs for installation or maintenance, or 

initial or continuing financial commitments from district funds, will be presented by the 

Superintendent for Board consideration and approval. 

 

3. Any groups planning to raise money for a gift to a school or the educational system will first consult 

with the principal and superintendent regarding what kind of gift should be made. The 

 

Superintendent will develop guidelines for accepting gifts. Such guidelines will include a concern for 

fairness and equity among schools. 

 

4. Priority lists of needed and desirable equipment, supplies or services will be kept in each school. 

 
 

5. All gifts will be subject to the provisions of Board policy. 

 
Gifts accepted shall be used for the purpose for which they were donated. In accepting gifts, the Board will 

be aware of the requirement that there should not be significant differences among the various school 

facilities. The Board will also consider Title IX compliance when accepting gifts. 

 

END OF POLICY 
 

 

Legal Reference(s): 
 

ORS 294.326 

ORS 332.075 

ORS 332.107 

ORS 332.385 

 

 
Cross Reference(s): 

 
IIA - Instructional Resources/Instructional  Materials 

 

 

Public Gifts to the District - KH 

1-1 

Yamhill-Carlton 
School District 1 


	ADP5FA1.tmp
	Yamhill Carlton School District
	Substance Use Prevention and Intervention Plan
	Executive Summary
	Overview
	Mission Statement
	Vision Statement
	District Policies and Documents
	SCHOOL BOARD POLICIES

	Substance Use Prevention & Intervention Action Plan
	Substance Misuse Referral Process
	Emergency Action Plan: Substance Abuse Incident in School
	I. Initial Discovery of Incident
	II. Medical Emergency Response (Suspected Overdose)
	III. Post-Emergency Medical Procedures
	IV. Reporting and Documentation
	V. Student Support and Follow-Up
	VII. Review and Update of EAP
	Yamhill County Referral for Youth Services




